
 
CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting – Agenda 
 

November 21, 2022 at 6:00 PM | Pooler City Hall | 100 US Hwy 80 SW, Pooler, GA 
31322

1 of 2

 
    
I. ROLL CALL/DECLARATION OF QUORUM 
    
II. CALL TO ORDER 
    
III. INVOCATION 
    
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
    
V. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
    
VI. CONSENT AGENDA 
  A. City Council Meeting Minutes of November 7, 2022 
  B. Alcoholic Beverage License Application for Savannah Distributing Co, 

Inc. at 58 Columbia Drive 
  C. Alcoholic Beverage License Application fro Viet Huong, Inc. dba Viet 

Huong Oriental Market at 210 Grand Central Boulevard 
  D. Temporary / Special Event (Dispensing Alcohol) Permit Application 

for Roselyn M. Moultrie on December 10, 2022 
  E. Department Reports 
  1. Public Works 
  2. Finance 
  3. Fire 
  4. Police 
  5. Recreation 
  6. Planning & Zoning 
    
VII. ORDINANCES, PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS 
  A. Ordinance O2022-11.A - To Amend Chapter 90 - Vehicles for Hire, 

Article II - Towing and Wrecker Service (Second Reading) 



2 of 2

  B. Ordinance O2022-11.B - To Amend Chapter 42 - Environment, Article 
VI - Tree Protection to Add Divisions and Establish Requirements for 
Tree Protection on Public Property and Rights-of-Way (First Reading) 

  C. Ordinance O2022-11.C - Zoning Text Amendment Adding Furniture 
and Related Product Manufacturing as a Conditional Use to Table 4.1 
Allowed Uses by Zoning District (First Reading; Public Hearing, Action) 

    
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
  A. Zoning Buffer Requirement Variance for 1393 US Highway 80 East 

(Public Hearing, Action) 
  B. Variance Request for Proposed Sewer Line Encroachment Within a 

City Owned Right-of-Way (Public Hearing, Action) 
  C. Zoning Map Amendment of Approximately 18.18 Acres at Morgan 

Lakes Industrial Boulevard from PUD to I-1 (Public Hearing, Action) 
  D. Zoning Map Amendment of Approximately 4.92 Acres at Benton 

Grove from R1-A to C-2 (Public Hearing, Action) 
  E. Conditional Use Request to Construct an Auto Body Collision Repair 

Shop at 1224 US Highway 80 East (Public Hearing, Action) 
  F. Conditional Use Request to Construct a Funeral Home at 1019 US 

Highway 80 West (Public Hearing, Action) 
  G. Minor Subdivision Plat for Outparcel 5, Mosaic Towne Center 
  H. Site Plan for 1543 Dean Forest Road 
  I. Site Plan for Durham Park Office at Durham Park Boulevard 
  J. Site Plan for 125 Distribution Drive 
  K. Site Plan for Parlor Mini Storage on Pine Barren Road 
    
IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
    
X. ADJOURNMENT 



 
CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting – Minutes 
 

November 7, 2022 at 6:00 PM | Pooler City Hall | 100 US Hwy 80 SW, Pooler, GA 31322

1 of 5

 
    
I. ROLL CALL/DECLARATION OF QUORUM  
  Present: Rebecca C. Benton, Mayor 

Tom Hutcherson, Mayor Pro Tem 
Shannon Black, Councilmember 
Aaron Higgins, Councilmember 
Stevie Wall, Councilmember 
John Wilcher, Councilmember 
Karen Williams, Councilmember  
Robert Byrd, City Manager     
Craig Call, City Attorney    
Chris Lightle, Finance Officer   
Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council    

    
Absent: Steve Scheer, City Attorney 

    
II. CALL TO ORDER  
  Mayor Rebecca Benton called the meeting to order 6:00 p.m. 

 

    
III. INVOCATION  
  Dr. Shirlenia Daniel gave the invocation. 

 

    
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
  Dr. Shirlenia Daniel led the pledge.  

 

    
V. ANNOUNCEMENTS  
  Mayor Rebecca Benton reminded all present that Election Day is tomorrow, 

November 8. 

 

    
VI. CONSENT AGENDA  
  

  

  A. City Council Meeting Minutes of October 17, 2022  
    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the consent agenda for consideration.  

 

  B. Special Event Permit Application for Jamie Casino on December 3, 
2022  

    
 

 



2 of 5

  C. Special Event Permit Application for Anna Swanson on February 25, 
2023  

     
Councilmember Karen Williams moved to approve the consent agenda.  
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Williams 
SECONDER: Black 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

 

    
VII. ORDINANCES, PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS  
  

  

  A. Ordinance O2022-10.A - To Amend Appendix A - Zoning, Article III - 
General Provisions by Adding Section 30 - Trailer Parking 
Yard (Second Reading)  

    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the ordinance for consideration. 
Councilmember John Wilcher moved to approve the second reading of 
Ordinance O2022-10.A - To Amend Appendix A - Zoning, Article III - 
General Provisions by Adding Section 30 - Trailer Parking Yard. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Wilcher 
SECONDER: Wall 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

 

  B. Ordinance O2022-10.B - To Amend Appendix A - Zoning, Article III - 
General Provisions by Adding Section 31 - Container Storage Yard 
and Table 4.1 - Allowed Uses by Zoning District; To Address Non-
Conformities and Need for Compliance (Second Reading)  

    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the ordinance for consideration. 
Councilmember John Wilcher moved to approve the second reading of 
Ordinance O2022-10.B - To Amend Appendix A - Zoning, Article III - 
General Provisions by Adding Section 31 - Container Storage Yard and 
Table 4.1 - Allowed Uses by Zoning District; To Address Non-Conformities 
and Need for Compliance. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Wilcher 
SECONDER: Higgins 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

 



3 of 5

  C. Ordinance O2022-11.A - To Amend Chapter 90 - Vehicles for Hire, 
Article II - Towing and Wrecker Service (First Reading)  

    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the ordinance for consideration. Chief 
Ashley Brown and Sergeant James Self reported on the proposed ordinance 
amendment. Councilmember John Wilcher moved to approve the first 
reading of Ordinance O2022-11.A - To Amend Chapter 90 - Vehicles for 
Hire, Article II - Towing and Wrecker Service. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Wilcher 
SECONDER: Black 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

 

  D. Proclamation for Georgia Retired Educators Day  
    Mayor Rebecca Benton read aloud the proclamation.  

 

  E. Resolution R2022-11.A - GEFA Loan Modification CW2021034  
    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the resolution for consideration. 

Councilmember Stevie Wall moved to approve Resolution R2022-11.A - 
GEFA Loan Modification CW2021034. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Wall 
SECONDER: Wilcher 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

 

  F. Resolution R2022-11.B - GEFA Loan Modification CW2020016  
    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the resolution for consideration. 

Councilmember Aaron Higgins moved to approve Resolution R2022-11.B - 
GEFA Loan Modification CW2020016. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS)  
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Wilcher 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

 

    
VIII. OLD BUSINESS  
  

  

  A. Amendment to Savannah Quarters PUD Master Plan and 
Development Standards  

    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the amendment for consideration. 
Mark Hall, Jim Collins, and Chris Marsengill were present to answer 
questions. Councilmember John Wilcher moved to approve the Amendment 

 



4 of 5

to Savannah Quarters PUD Master Plan and Development Standards. 
Resident John Hayden expressed his concerns on the proposed changes 
related to traffic on Quacco Road and Pooler Parkway.  
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Wilcher 
SECONDER: Williams 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

    
IX. NEW BUSINESS  
  

  

  A. Site Plan for Hydradyne Retail and Warehouse Building at 1752 Old 
Dean Forest Road (PIN 5-0924D-01-001)  

    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the site plan for consideration. Tom 
Havens of Coastal Engineering was present to answer questions. 
Councilmember John Wilcher moved to approve the Site Plan for Hydradyne 
Retail and Warehouse Building at 1752 Old Dean Forest Road (PIN 5-
0924D-01-001) subject to recording of the stormwater agreement prior to a 
preconstruction meeting. 
 
Motion to Approve with Stipulations; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Wilcher 
SECONDER: Hutcherson 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

 

    
X. ADJOURNMENT  
  Councilmember Aaron Higgins moved to adjourn the meeting. 

 
Motion to Adjourn; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Wilcher 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:44 p.m. 
 
 
The foregoing minutes are true and correct and approved by me on this _____ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
 
_______________________________ 



5 of 5

Rebecca C. Benton, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
__________________________________ 
Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council 



























 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
Matt Saxon 

Assistant City Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNCIL REPORT 

Report for the month of October  

Mrs. Williams, 

It gives me great pleasure to present to you, the work that our Wastewater Treatment Plant, 

Sewer, and Water Departments have accomplished since the last council meeting: 

Water: 

        New updated fire hydrants installed throughout the city.  

Inspected 32 Grease trap inspections. 

66 C.O inspections conducted. 

Repaired 12 residential leaking laterals. 

Repaired 2 commercial meter pits.  

Repaired 6-inch water main at the intersection of Pinewood Drive and Gleason Ave. 

460ft of 2-inch water main replaced on West Bound Highway 80.   

       Witnessed the testing and certification of 53 backflow preventers. 

Performed 1,303 line locates requested by the (UPC) Utility Protection Center. 

 

Sewer & WWTP:  

EOM report attached. 

  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Matt Saxon   

Assistant City Manager 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
Matthew Saxon 

Assistant City Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNCIL REPORT 

Report for the month of October 2022 

Street: 

• Continued routine maintenance throughout the city repairing potholes, sidewalks, and shoulder work.  

 

Signs: 

• Replaced 23 signs throughout the city. 

 

Storm Water:  

• Completed routine residential workorders. 

• Constructed and repaired 2 catch basins on Silverwood. 

• Completed 79,922 of routine roadside ditch and outfall maintenance.  

Canal Maintenance:  

• Continued routine maintenance throughout the city. 

• Cleaned out Shearouse outfall from Shearouse Lumber to Hardin canal.  

• Removed a blockage on Sheftall Canal behind Dorsey tire & removed debris in various canals 
throughout the city. 

 

Public Works Admin: 

• Reviewed 16 sets of site plans.  

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Matthew E. Saxon  

Assistant City Manager 



 

 
  OCTOBER 

2022 
Monthly Report 

480 Edsel Drive, Ste 100 
Richmond Hill, GA 31324 
912.445.0050 
www.eomworx.com 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – October 2022 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
         
 
 
 
Content                 Section 
 
Executive Summary…………………………………………………………………………………… 1.0 
 
Wastewater Treatment ……………………………………………………………….………... 2.0  
 
Collections & Distribution….…………………….…………………………………….……….. 3.0 
 
Engineering …..…………….……………………………………………………………….………….....  4.0 
 
Administration………………………..……………………………………………………………………. 5.0 
 
Appendix …………………………………………………………………………………………………………6.0 
 
 
   



 

Pooler Monthly Report – October 2022 

SECTION 1.0  
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
EOM is pleased to provide this revised monthly report to the City 
of Pooler for review.  Departmental reports and requested 
supplemental data can be found enclosed.  
 
MONTH HIGHLIGHT 

- SEWER – Responded to (4) grinder pump calls 
- SEWER – Responded to (11) sewer blockage/leak calls 
- SEWER – Completed 2 Sewer Repairs 

o S. Rogers St 
o Morgan St 

- SEWER – Completed 1 Manhole Repair 
o Nordic Way 

- WASTEWATER LIFT STATIONS 
o PO-LS-01.05: Sangrena Lift Station – Panel upgrades and SCADA 

installation 
o PO-LS-15.05:  Morgan Pines Lift Station – Replaced alarm lights 
o PO-LS-28: Pooler Middle School Lift Station – Base elbow repairs 
o PO-LS-28.05: Pooler Middle School – Installed new disconnect, flood 

lights and switch 
o PO-LS-40.02: Daniels Tract Lift Station – Removed debris from pump 2 
o Completed annual electrical inspections on 11 lift stations 
o EOM continues to transition to full upgraded SCADA monitoring at all 

Lift station’s locations 
- WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

o PO-WW-MB-60: MBR_BASIN 4 – Cleared debris on pressure 
transmitter  

o PO-WW-EQ-00: EQUALIZATION BASIN LIFT STATION – Replaced 
control fuse  

o PO-WW-SD-13: Digestor Blower_3 – Replace surge suppressor 
o PO-WW-UT-02: SCADA SYSTEM – Assessed communication loss  
o PO-WW-BP-32: BELT FILTER PRESS 2_Lanyard Switch – Rewired 

lanyard switch 
o PO-WW-UT-07: Storage Pond Pump – Installed new latch and 

modified door on pump housing 
o PO-WW-MB-73: CLEAN IN PLACE SYSTEM_Chemical Dosing Pump_1 – 

Replaced pump and motor and replaced pipe 
o PO-WW-GR-22: FINE SCREEN_1 – Replaced wash box hoses, repaired 

chain, realigned sprockets and repaired motor to flex 
o PO-WW-EQ-01: EQUALIZATION BASIN_ZONE 1 – Repaired water line 

 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – October 2022 

  
 
 
  

WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT 

Section 2.0 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – October 2022 

 

SECTION 2.0 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT 
 
Table 1 – WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT PERMIT COMPARISON 
 

  



 

Pooler Monthly Report – October 2022 

  

COLLECTIONS & 
DISTRIBUTION 

Section 3.0 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – October 2022 

SECTION 3.0 
COLLECTIONS & DISTRIBUTION 
 
Table 1 – SEWER MAINTENANCE WORK ORDER REPORT 

  



 

Pooler Monthly Report – October 2022 

  

ENGINEERING 

Section 4.0 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – October 2022 

 

SECTION 4.0 
ENGINEERING 
SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

I. Approved Projects 
▪ Benton Grove Townhomes – Amenity 
▪ 88,000 SF Warehouse (251 Morgan Lakes Industrial Blvd) 
▪ Hydradyne Retail & Warehouse Building 

 
II. Projects Under Review 

▪ Transportation Logistics Terminal Tract - 2A (Submittal #1) 
▪ Quik Trip (Submittal #5) 
▪ Harmony Subdivision – Amenity(Submittal #2) 
▪ La Parilla (Submittal #3) 
▪ Parlor Mini Storage (Submittal #3) 
▪ Pooler One – Pine Barren Road Entrance (Submittal #1) 
▪ Hwy 80 Car Wash (Submittal #2) 
▪ My Place Hotel (Submittal #2) 
▪ 115,500 SF Warehouse (Submittal #1) 
▪ Nordic Trailer Storage Yard 
▪ Davis Group – Pine Barren Road 
▪ 1545 Dean Forest Expansion  (Submittal #2) 
▪ Durham Park Office (Submittal #4) 

 
III. Projects Waiting On Responses 

▪ Arden Senior Living – 2nd review completed on 10/27/2022 
▪ Walk On’s & Veterinary Center – 2nd review completed 

10/24/2022 
▪ Towne Place Pooler – 4th review completed on 10/25/2022 
▪ Westside Commerce Center – 3rd review completed on 

10/25/2022 
▪ Parlor Water Main Extension  - 1st review completed on 

10/24/2022 
▪ Sharon Court – 2nd review completed on 10/24/2022 
▪ Nine Squares – 2nd review completed on 10/20/2022 
▪ Pooler Parkway & Quacco Rd Widening – 2nd review completed 

on 10/11/2022 
▪ Lot 3 Dean Forest Business Park – 1st review completed on 

9/6/2022 
▪ Barrow Drive Trailer Parking Extension – 2nd review completed 

on 9/8/2022 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – October 2022 

 
 
 
 
 

▪ Westbrook Area L1 – 2nd review completed on 9/8/2022 
▪ Westbrook Area L2 – 2nd Review Completed on 9/8/2022 
▪ Westbrook Area L3 – 2nd Review completed on 9/8/2022 
▪ Element Hotel & Commercial Space – 2nd review completed on 

9/21/2022 
▪ Bragg Tract Phase 1 – 1st review completed on 9/22/2022 
▪ Pittman Subaru – 1st review completed on 9/23/2022 
▪ 1707 Old Dean Forest Road – 2nd review completed on 

9/26/2022 
▪ 1501 Pine Barren – 3rd review completed on 8/30/2021. 
▪ Local 474 – 3rd review completed on 4/29/2021 

 
IV. ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

▪ Additional items were added to the design of Lift Station #21 & 
22. Currently pending final electrical plan.  

▪ Initial 2022 LMIG Bid Documents were submitted to the City in 
Summer 2022. Currently pending review and response from 
City.   
 

 
  
 
  



 

Pooler Monthly Report – October 2022 

  

ADMINISTRATION 

Section 5.0 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – October 2022 

SECTION 5.0 
ADMINISTRATION 
 
 
BUDGET 
 

 
  



 

Pooler Monthly Report – October 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 

Section 6.0 



PERMITTEE NAME/ADDRESS (Include Facility Name/Location if Different)

NAME:

ADDRESS:

FACILITY:

LOCATION:

 

Pooler City of

100 Southwest Hwy 80

Pooler, GA 31322

Pooler, City of (Bloomingdale Regional WPCP)

Winskie Road

Pooler GA 31322

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES)

DISCHARGE MONITORING REPORT (DMR)

FROM TO

PERMIT NUMBER DISCHARGE NUMBER

MONITORING PERIOD

YEAR YEARMO MODAY DAY

GA0047066 002-B3

22 09 01 22 09 30

DMR MAILING ZIP CODE:

Form Approved

OMB No. 2040-0004

Page

MAJOR

WPCP Discharge

External Outfall

No Discharge

EPA Form 3320-1 (Rev.01/06) Previous editions may be used.

COMMENTS AND EXPLANATION OF ANY VIOLATIONS (Reference all attachments here)

NAME/TITLE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

TYPED OR PRINTED
SIGNATURE OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER OR

AUTHORIZED AGENT AREA Code NUMBER YEAR MO DAY

TELEPHONE DATEI certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or
supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and
evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.

Marcus Hobgood

Wastewater Manager WW1-015056
912 445-1894 22 10 14

1

 

    QUANTITY OR LOADING QUALITY OR CONCENTRATION
NO.
EX

FREQUENCY
OF ANALYSIS

SAMPLE
TYPEPARAMETER

  VALUE VALUE UNITS VALUE VALUE VALUE UNITS      

OXYGEN, DISSOLVED
(DO)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

7.1 **** ****
 mg/L

0 01/01 GR GRAB

00300  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

6.0
MINIMUM

**** ****
 mg/L

  01/01 GR GRAB

BOD, 5-DAY
(20 DEG. C)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

49.7 52.3
 lb/d

**** 2.0 2.0
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00310  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

82.6
MO AVG

102.6
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** 3.0
MO AVG

4.5
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

BOD, 5-DAY
(20 DEG. C)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

2353 2555
 lb/d

**** 195 201
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00310  1  0  0
RAW SEWAGE INFLUENT

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Req Mon
MO AVG

Req Mon
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

Req Mon
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

PH
 

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

6.5 **** 7.0
 SU

0 01/01 GR GRAB

00400  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

6.0
MINIMUM

**** 8.5
MAXIMUM  SU

  01/01 GR GRAB

SOLIDS, TOTAL
SUSPENDED

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

24.6 26.4
 lb/d

**** 1.0 1.0
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00530  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

138.0
MO AVG

172.0
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** 5.0
MO AVG

7.5
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

SOLIDS, TOTAL
SUSPENDED

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

1885 2099
 lb/d

**** 156 162
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00530  1  0  0
RAW SEWAGE INFLUENT

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Req Mon
MO AVG

Req Mon
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

Req Mon
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

NITROGEN, ORGANIC
TOTAL (AS N)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 1.388 ****
 mg/L

0 01/30
CP

COMPOS

00605  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 mg/L

  01/30
CP

COMPOS



PERMITTEE NAME/ADDRESS (Include Facility Name/Location if Different)

NAME:

ADDRESS:

FACILITY:

LOCATION:

 

Pooler City of

100 Southwest Hwy 80

Pooler, GA 31322

Pooler, City of (Bloomingdale Regional WPCP)

Winskie Road

Pooler GA 31322

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES)

DISCHARGE MONITORING REPORT (DMR)

FROM TO

PERMIT NUMBER DISCHARGE NUMBER

MONITORING PERIOD

YEAR YEARMO MODAY DAY

GA0047066 002-B3

22 09 01 22 09 30

DMR MAILING ZIP CODE:

Form Approved

OMB No. 2040-0004

Page

MAJOR

WPCP Discharge

External Outfall

No Discharge

EPA Form 3320-1 (Rev.01/06) Previous editions may be used.

COMMENTS AND EXPLANATION OF ANY VIOLATIONS (Reference all attachments here)

NAME/TITLE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

TYPED OR PRINTED
SIGNATURE OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER OR

AUTHORIZED AGENT AREA Code NUMBER YEAR MO DAY

TELEPHONE DATEI certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or
supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and
evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.

Marcus Hobgood

Wastewater Manager WW1-015056
912 445-1894 22 10 14

2

 

    QUANTITY OR LOADING QUALITY OR CONCENTRATION
NO.
EX

FREQUENCY
OF ANALYSIS

SAMPLE
TYPEPARAMETER

  VALUE VALUE UNITS VALUE VALUE VALUE UNITS      

NITROGEN, AMMONIA
TOTAL (AS N)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

7.2 6.9
 lb/d

**** 0.3 0.3
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00610  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

11.0
MO AVG

13.8
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** 0.4
MO AVG

0.6
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

NITROGEN, KJELDAHL
TOTAL (AS N)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 1.690 ****
 mg/L

0 01/30
CP

COMPOS

00625  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 mg/L

  01/30
CP

COMPOS

NITRITE PLUS NITRATE
TOTAL 1 DET. (AS N)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 9.4 ****
 mg/L

0 01/30
CP

COMPOS

00630  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 mg/L

  01/30
CP

COMPOS

PHOSPHORUS, TOTAL
(AS P)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

1.4 2.1
****

**** 0.1 0.2
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00665  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

27.5
MO AVG

34.4
WKLY AVG ****

**** 1.0
MO AVG

1.5
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

PHOSPHATE, ORTHO (AS
P)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 0.086 ****
 mg/L

0 01/30
CP

COMPOS

04175  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 mg/L

  01/30
CP

COMPOS

FLOW, IN CONDUIT OR
THRU TREATMENT PLANT

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

3.0 3.17
 MGD

**** **** ****
 ****

0 99/99 CN CONTIN

50050  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

3.3
MO AVG

4.2
WKLY AVG  MGD

**** **** ****
****

  99/99 CN CONTIN

COLIFORM, FECAL
GENERAL

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 2.1 3.5
 #/100mL

0 02/DA GR GRAB

74055  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 23
MO GEO

23
WKLY GEO  #/100mL

  02/DA GR GRAB



PERMITTEE NAME/ADDRESS (Include Facility Name/Location if Different)

NAME:

ADDRESS:

FACILITY:

LOCATION:

 

Pooler City of

100 Southwest Hwy 80

Pooler, GA 31322

Pooler, City of (Bloomingdale Regional WPCP)

Winskie Road

Pooler GA 31322

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES)

DISCHARGE MONITORING REPORT (DMR)

FROM TO

PERMIT NUMBER DISCHARGE NUMBER

MONITORING PERIOD

YEAR YEARMO MODAY DAY

GA0047066 002-B3

22 09 01 22 09 30

DMR MAILING ZIP CODE:

Form Approved

OMB No. 2040-0004

Page

MAJOR

WPCP Discharge

External Outfall

No Discharge

EPA Form 3320-1 (Rev.01/06) Previous editions may be used.

COMMENTS AND EXPLANATION OF ANY VIOLATIONS (Reference all attachments here)

NAME/TITLE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

TYPED OR PRINTED
SIGNATURE OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER OR

AUTHORIZED AGENT AREA Code NUMBER YEAR MO DAY

TELEPHONE DATEI certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or
supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and
evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.

Marcus Hobgood

Wastewater Manager WW1-015056
912 445-1894 22 10 14

3

 

    QUANTITY OR LOADING QUALITY OR CONCENTRATION
NO.
EX

FREQUENCY
OF ANALYSIS

SAMPLE
TYPEPARAMETER

  VALUE VALUE UNITS VALUE VALUE VALUE UNITS      

CYANIDE, TOTAL
(AS CN)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 3.6000 ****
 ug/L

0 01/30 GR GRAB

00720  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** ****
MO AVG

****
 ug/L

  01/30 GR GRAB

MERCURY, TOTAL
(AS HG)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 0.69 ****
 ng/L

0 01/30 GR GRAB

71900  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

**** ****
MO AVG

****
 ng/L

  01/30 GR GRAB

SOLIDS, SUSPENDED
PERCENT REMOVAL

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
 dry ton

**** **** ****
 %

0 01/30 CA CALCTD

81011  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 dry ton

>85
MINIMUM

**** ****
 %

  01/30 CA CALCTD

BOD, 5-DAY PERCENT
REMOVAL

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** **** ****
 %

0 01/30 CA CALCTD

81010  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****
****

>85
MINIMUM

**** ****
 %

  01/30 CA CALCTD

SOLIDS, SLUDGE, TOT,
DRY WEIGHT

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

48 ****
 dry ton

**** **** ****
****

0 01/30 CA CALCTD

78477  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Req Mon
MO AVG

****
 dry ton

**** **** ****
****

  01/30 CA CALCTD

  SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

   
 

     
 

     

  PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

   
 

     
 

     

  SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

   
 

     
 

     

  PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

   
 

     
 

     



September 2022 Permit Data

Daily Data

Daily

9/1/2022 - 9/30/2022

Pooler

Pooler RainFall

Precip In/Day

Inches/Day

Pooler

Influent

Flow Mgd

MGD

Pooler

EQ-Flow

MGD

Pooler

Effluent

Flow Mgd

MGD

Pooler

ReUse

Flow Mgd

MGD

Pooler

ReUse

Turbidity NTU

NTU

Pooler

Influent

Bod 5

MG/L

Pooler

Influent

Solids TSS

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Bod 5

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Solids TSS

MG/L

9/1/2022 - Thursday 0.00 1.613 2.725 2.906 184.00 147.00 2.00 1.00

9/2/2022 - Friday 1.00 1.629 2.704 2.846 186.00 153.00 2.00 1.00

9/3/2022 - Saturday 0.04 1.541 2.734 3.076

9/4/2022 - Sunday 1.94 1.495 2.611 2.897

9/5/2022 - Monday 1.28 1.703 2.936 3.367

9/6/2022 - Tuesday 0.05 1.718 2.893 3.214

9/7/2022 - Wednesday 0.00 1.520 2.849 2.945 177.00 168.00 2.00 1.00

9/8/2022 - Thursday 0.00 1.619 3.082 3.232 171.00 147.00 2.00 1.00

9/9/2022 - Friday 0.76 1.705 2.981 3.072 203.00 153.00 2.00 1.00

9/10/2022 - Saturday 0.78 1.645 3.112 3.432

9/11/2022 - Sunday 0.00 1.512 2.761 3.108

9/12/2022 - Monday 0.11 1.707 2.872 3.010

9/13/2022 - Tuesday 0.00 1.146 2.703 2.930

9/14/2022 - Wednesday 0.00 1.457 2.977 3.086 187.00 158.00 2.00 1.00

9/15/2022 - Thursday 0.00 1.448 2.863 3.031 161.00 129.00 2.00 1.00

9/16/2022 - Friday 0.00 1.640 3.038 3.192 187.00 137.00 2.00 1.00

9/17/2022 - Saturday 0.00 1.347 2.647 2.904

9/18/2022 - Sunday 0.00 1.417 2.743 2.968

9/19/2022 - Monday 0.00 1.395 2.890 3.119

9/20/2022 - Tuesday 0.00 1.748 3.036 3.183 201.00 178.00 2.00 1.03

9/21/2022 - Wednesday 0.00 1.390 2.951 3.108 191.00 159.00 2.00 1.00

9/22/2022 - Thursday 0.00 1.433 2.984 3.109 211.00 148.00 2.00 1.00

9/23/2022 - Friday 0.00 1.512 2.870 3.088

9/24/2022 - Saturday 0.00 1.256 2.458 2.714

9/25/2022 - Sunday 0.00 1.412 2.560 2.788

9/26/2022 - Monday 0.00 1.130 2.598 2.821

9/27/2022 - Tuesday 0.00 0.979 2.332 2.472

9/28/2022 - Wednesday 0.00 0.919 2.149 2.270 202.00 174.00 2.45 1.00

9/29/2022 - Thursday 0.00 1.162 2.432 2.471 0.07 0.07 272.00 166.00 2.00 1.00

9/30/2022 - Friday 0.25 1.130 2.540 2.770 199.00 163.00 2.00 1.00

Sum 6.21 43.330 83.031 89.129 0.07 0.07 2732.00 2180.00 28.45 14.00

Avg 0.21 1.440 2.768 2.971 0.07 0.07 195.00 155.70 2.03 1.00

Max 1.94 1.750 3.112 3.432 0.07 0.07 272.00 178.00 2.45 1.00

Min 0.00 0.920 2.149 2.270 0.07 0.07 161.00 129.00 2.00 1.00

GMean



September 2022 Permit Data

Pooler

Effluent

Fecal Coliform

#/100ML

Pooler

Effluent

Nh3 N 

Ammonia

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Phosphorus

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Nitrate + Nitrite

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

TKN

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Org Nitrogen

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Ortho 

Phosphorus

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Cyanide

UG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Mercury

1631E

NG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Diss Oxygen

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

pH

SU

Pooler

Solids 

Removed

Dry TON

1.00 0.21 0.13 7.41 6.79 2.00

0.19 0.11 7.68 6.60 4.00

7.53 6.70 0.00

7.52 6.70 0.00

7.48 6.66 0.00

1.00 7.69 6.76 4.00

0.20 0.06 7.51 6.53 0.00

1.00 0.30 0.07 7.55 6.66 2.00

0.30 0.10 9.37 1.69 1.39 0.09 7.73 6.73 0.00

7.85 6.59 0.00

7.70 6.81 0.00

4.00 7.60 6.86 2.00

7.65 6.64 2.00

3.00 0.26 0.11 7.74 6.75 4.00

0.18 0.08 7.77 6.59 2.00

0.28 0.06 7.64 6.73 0.00

7.51 6.94 0.00

7.54 6.92 0.00

2.50 7.58 6.85 4.00

5.00 0.40 0.15 7.67 6.80 4.00

0.25 0.12 7.73 6.87 4.00

0.09 0.27 3.60 0.69 7.12 6.91 4.00

7.51 6.84 0.00

7.51 6.96 0.00

7.51 6.88 0.00

7.41 6.95 2.00

1.00 7.52 6.89 4.00

0.56 0.26 7.74 6.92 2.00

4.50 0.27 0.11 7.87 6.69 2.00

0.74 0.12 7.83 6.65 0.00

23.00 4.22 1.74 9.37 1.69 1.39 0.09 3.60 0.69 228.10 203.17 48.00

2.10 0.30 0.12 9.37 1.69 1.39 0.09 3.60 0.69 7.60 6.77 2.00

5.00 0.74 0.27 9.37 1.69 1.39 0.09 3.60 0.69 7.87 6.96 4.00

1.00 0.09 0.06 9.37 1.69 1.39 0.09 3.60 0.69 7.12 6.53 0.00

2.10



 

 

INTERIM 

COMPARATIVE 

OPERATING 

STATEMENTS 

 
 

City of Pooler, Georgia 
For the Ten Months Ended October 31, 2022 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: 

Finance Department 



 

 



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Interim Comparative Operating Statements (Unaudited) 

Table of Contents 

For the Ten Months Ended October 31, 2022 

 

PAGE

COMPARATIVE OPERATING STATEMENTS

General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.................................................. 1

Tree Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances........................................................ 2

Forfeiture Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.............................................. 3

ARP Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.................. 4

Accommodation Excise Tax Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances................ 5

Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances........................................................................................................................................ 6

Water and Sewer Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position............................................ 7



 

 

 



 

     

COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

(UNAUDITED)



 

     



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

General Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Ten Months Ended October 31, 2022 and 2021 

1 
 

2022 2021

REVENUES

Taxes...................................................................... 18,024,048.53$  15,426,303.54$ 

Licenses and permits............................................. 1,444,485.76      928,359.56        

Intergovernmental................................................. 664,051.34         412,544.93        

Charges for services............................................... 2,602,723.02      2,157,608.91     

Fines and forfeitures.............................................. 618,442.15         750,920.55        

Investment earnings.............................................. 92,166.49           8,532.12            

Contributions and donations.................................. 206,041.73         1,667,029.66     

Miscellaneous........................................................ 112,888.34         73,030.81          

Total revenues............................................................ 23,764,847.36    21,424,330.08    2,340,517.28      10.92%

EXPENDITURES

Current

General government.......................................... 3,142,051.60      2,964,003.51     

Judicial................................................................ 342,002.64         352,620.96        

Public safety....................................................... 11,221,741.01    11,226,445.10   

Public works........................................................ 6,188,351.82      4,530,100.55     

Health and welfare............................................. 124,770.47         109,233.19        

Culture and recreation....................................... 1,597,444.55      1,356,585.74     

Housing and development................................. 723,797.82         706,471.18        

Debt service

Principal.............................................................. 397,861.34         282,699.59        

Interest............................................................... 58,925.44           29,535.06          

Total expenditures..................................................... 23,796,946.69    21,557,694.88    2,239,251.81      10.39%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures...................................... (32,099.33)          (133,364.80)       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in............................................................ 983,090.14         781,599.50        

Transfers out.......................................................... ‐                      (437,851.85)       

Sale of general capital assets................................ 98,101.16           139,097.50        

Insurance recoveries.............................................. 70,641.55           18,816.00          

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,151,832.85      501,661.15         650,171.70         129.60%

Net changes in fund balances.................................... 1,119,733.52      368,296.35        

Fund balances at beginning of year........................... 27,820,097.95    23,942,856.39   

Fund balances at end of year..................................... 28,939,831.47$  24,311,152.74$ 



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Tree Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Ten Months Ended October 31, 2022 and 2021 

2 
 

2022 2021

REVENUES

Contributions.......................................................... 791,175.00$       1,736,206.00$   

Investment earnings.............................................. 1,557.69             239.25               

Total revenues........................................................ 792,732.69         1,736,445.25      (943,712.56)        ‐54.35%

EXPENDITURES

Current

Parks................................................................... 190,481.10         141,118.50        

Total expenditures................................................. 190,481.10         141,118.50         49,362.60           34.98%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. 602,251.59         1,595,326.75     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in............................................................ ‐                      437,851.85         (437,851.85)       

Total other financing sources (uses) ‐                      437,851.85        

Net change in fund balance....................................... 602,251.59         2,033,178.60     

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ 2,026,513.14      ‐                     

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... 2,628,764.73$    2,033,178.60$   



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Forfeiture Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Ten Months Ended October 31, 2022 and 2021 

3 
 

2022 2021

REVENUES

Fines and forfeitures.............................................. 19,602.82$         64,316.10$        

Investment earnings.............................................. 125.89                50.34                 

Total revenues........................................................ 19,728.71           64,366.44           (44,637.73)          ‐69.35%

EXPENDITURES

Current

Public safety....................................................... 5,602.60             30,730.90          

Total expenditures................................................. 5,602.60             30,730.90           (25,128.30)          ‐81.77%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. 14,126.11           33,635.54          

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ 109,758.62         72,146.73          

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... 123,884.73$       105,782.27$      



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

American Rescue Plan Local Fiscal Recovery Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Ten Months Ended October 31, 2022 and 2021 

4 
 

2022 2021

REVENUES

Intergovernmental grants...................................... ‐$                    ‐$                   

Investment earnings.............................................. 4,462.93             717.70               

Total revenues........................................................ 4,462.93             717.70                3,745.23             521.84%

EXPENDITURES

Current

Health and welfare............................................. ‐                      ‐                     

Total expenditures................................................. ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. 4,462.93             717.70               

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ 1,132.84             ‐                     

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... 5,595.77$           717.70$             



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Accommodation Excise Tax Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Ten Months Ended October 31, 2022 and 2021 

5 
 

2022 2021

REVENUES

Taxes...................................................................... 1,966,180.30$    1,563,198.93$   

Total revenues........................................................ 1,966,180.30      1,563,198.93      402,981.37         25.78%

EXPENDITURES

Intergovernmental:

Assistance.......................................................... 983,090.16         781,599.49        

Total expenditures................................................. 983,090.16         781,599.49         201,490.67         25.78%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. 983,090.14         781,599.44        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers out.......................................................... (983,090.14)        (781,599.44)        (201,490.70)        25.78%

Total other financing sources (uses) (983,090.14)        (781,599.44)       

Net change in fund balance....................................... ‐                      ‐                     

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ ‐                      ‐                     

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... ‐$                    ‐$                   



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Ten Months Ended October 31, 2022 and 2021 

6 
 

2022 2021

REVENUES

Intergovernmental........................................ 4,227,936.16$    3,495,660.94$   

Investment earnings..................................... 14,399.94           1,610.26            

Total revenues.............................................. 4,242,336.10      3,497,271.20      745,064.90         21.30%

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay

Public safety.............................................. 963,029.86         453,410.20        

Public works.............................................. 904,679.51         2,178,919.60     

Recreation................................................. 138,974.89         30,227.50          

Debt service

Principal.................................................... 1,190,000.00      1,160,000.00     

Interest...................................................... 309,278.66         339,526.78        

Total expenditures........................................ 3,505,962.92      4,162,084.08      (656,121.16)        ‐15.76%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures........................ 736,373.18         (664,812.88)       

Fund balance, beginning of year...................... 4,420,409.33      2,949,988.45     

Fund balance, end of year................................ 5,156,782.51$    2,285,175.57$   



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Water and Sewer Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

For the Ten Months Ended October 31, 2022 and 2021 

7 
 

2022 2021

OPERATING REVENUES

Water fees............................................................. 3,560,148.46$    3,322,853.39$   

Sewer fees.............................................................. 4,522,251.97      4,231,448.59     

Miscellaneous fees................................................ 113,814.05         94,855.94          

Total operating revenues........................................... 8,196,214.48      7,649,157.92      547,056.56         7.15%

OPERATING EXPENSES

Sewer and Wastewater Treatment Plant

Purchased and contracted services.................... 1,822,453.63      1,197,428.67     

Materials and supplies....................................... 1,353,143.45      1,309,665.54     

Total sewer and wastewater treatment plant....... 3,175,597.08      2,507,094.21      668,502.87         26.66%

Water

Personnel services and employee benefits....... 581,385.06         753,509.81        

Purchased and contracted services.................... 328,574.05         367,642.70        

Materials and supplies....................................... 1,619,909.34      1,617,376.92     

Total water............................................................. 2,617,453.92      2,624,647.43      (7,193.51)            ‐0.27%

Total operating expenses........................................... 5,793,051.00      5,131,741.64      661,309.36         12.89%

Operating income (loss)............................................ 2,403,163.48      2,517,416.28      (114,252.80)        ‐4.54%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest income...................................................... 62,199.88           12,440.31          

Insurance recoveries.............................................. ‐                      624,733.05        

Interest expense..................................................... (279,486.33)        (644,530.24)       

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses).................. (217,286.45)        (7,356.88)            (209,929.57)        2853.51%

Income (loss) before capital contributions................ 2,185,877.03      2,510,059.40      (324,182.37)        ‐12.92%

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Tap fees.................................................................. 481,778.18         633,739.04        

Capital cost recovery charges................................ 6,913,239.81      2,069,719.64     

Total capital contributions......................................... 7,395,017.99      2,703,458.68      4,691,559.31      173.54%

Change in net position............................................... 9,580,895.02      5,213,518.08      4,367,376.94      83.77%

Net position, beginning of year................................. 54,822,228.61    50,093,307.21   

Net position, end of year........................................... 64,403,123.63$  55,306,825.29$ 
 



City of Pooler
Fire-Rescue Services

Fire-Rescue Report Oct. 1st – 31st, 2022

MAJOR INCIDENT TYPE # INCIDENTS 
Oct 2022

% Of TOTAL 
Oct 2022

YEAR to DATE 
2022

YEAR to DATE 
2021

Fires 14 2.81% 139 181
 Structure Fires 6 - 53 78

Emergency Medical Service 293 58.72% 2691 2402
Motor Vehicle Collisions 47 9.42% 468 555
Technical Rescues 5 1.00% 89 87
Hazardous Condition (No Fire) 7 1.40% 81 76
Service Call 73 14.63% 511 421
Good Intent Call 24 4.81% 340 451
False Alarm & False Call 36 7.21% 368 341
Severe Weather & Natural Disaster 0 0 13 9
Special Incident/Citizen Complaint 0 0 1 1

TOTAL 499 100% 4701 4524

October Call Volume Increased from 435 in 2021 to 499 in 2022, (14.71% increase)

For the year, call volume has increased by 177 calls or 3.91% over 2021 totals.

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Incident Total

EMS
Fires
MVC
Tech Rescue
Haz Con
Service Calls
Good Intent
False Alarm
Severe Weather
Special Incident



  Significant Calls 

1. 10/4/22 – Vehicle Extrication – E. Interstate 16 & Pooler Pkwy.  – 3 car crash, passenger 
entrapped– Engine 64, Rescue 61, Tower 64 & Battalion 60 responded. 6-minute extrication 
time, Units on scene for 45 minutes. 11 personnel responded.

2. 10/4/22 – Vehicle Extrication – E. Interstate 16 & Interstate 95 – 3 car crash, driver 
entrapped, multiple patients– Engine 64, Rescue 61, Engine 61 & Battalion 60 responded. 
10-minute extrication time, Units on scene for 55 minutes. 11 personnel responded.

3. 9/16/22 – Structure Fire – Continental Blvd – Hotel fire, fire contained to one room 
caused by heater malfunction while attempting to remove bedbugs. 4 Engines, Tower 64, 
Rescue 61, & Battalion 60 responded. Units on scene for over an hour. 18 personnel 
responded.

4. 9/26/22 - Structure Fire – Bamford Blvd. –Manufacturing Facility – Initial call was for 
Fire Alarm. On arrival, crews had an odor of smoke and upon investigation found smoke 
throughout.  Fire in a robotic welder filtering system – Crews quickly extinguished the fire 
and assisted by occupants, removed the smoke from the facility. 4 Engines, Tower 64, 
Rescue 61, & Battalion 60 responded. Units were on scene for over an hour. 21 personnel 
responded. 



5. 10/10/22 - New Ladder Truck – The new ladder for Fire Station 5 is completed and final 
inspection was completed the week of Oct. 17th – 21st. Truck should be delivered to Pooler 
the week of Nov. 10th-14th.



 

 
 Council Report  

Monday November 21, 2022 

October 2022   

 
• A total of 74 Part 1 crimes reported in the month of October. Bringing the 

total to 656 Part 1 crimes for year.   

• From prior year 2021, this is a decrease of 2% 

• A total of 24 shopliftings reported in the month of October. Bringing the 

total to 224 shopliftings for the year. 

• From prior year 2021, this is a decrease of 24%. 

• Total Calls for service in October were 2,244. Bringing the total number of 

calls for service for the year to 23,856. 

• From prior year 2021, this is an increase of 6%. 

• A total of 1,376 citations were issued in the month of October. Bringing the 

total for the year to 15,099. 

• From prior year 2021, this is an increase of 14% 

• A total of 137 arrest were made in the month of October. Bringing the total 

number arrest for the year to 1,330. 

• From prior year 2021, this is an increase of 2%. 

• A total of 33 DUI arrest were made in the month of October. Bringing the 

total number of DUI arrest for the year to 275. 

• From prior year 2021, this is an increase of 39%. 

 

Activity Time Period 
10/01-10/31/2022 

Year to Date 
2022 

Year to Date 
2021 

Percentage 
Change from 

21 - 22 

     

Part 1 crimes 74 656 669 -2% 

Shopliftings 24 224 293 -24% 

Calls for service 2,244 23,856 22,464 6% 

Citation 1,376 15,099 13,283 14% 

Arrests 137 1,330 1,298 2% 

DUI arrests 33 275 198                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                39% 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7 Pooler Gaelic football club began practicing at complex.

8

1

2

 

3

4

5

6

1

2

3

Regular basketball registration opened for ages 7-13.

New Hampstead played Southeast Bulloch.

SCPS hosted Beach High.

Seniors had the opportunity to participate in a trip to Blue Ridge Mountains, as well

The Pooler Rotary Club sponsored their annual fish fry at the center for the 

halloween party

The center also hosted a 'breast cancer awareness' luncheon.

All regularly scheduled classes continued in October.

Parks performed routine maintenance at all 5 parks, the community and senior

centers, and the cemetery.

Free flu shots were offered to the members, sponsored by Apollo Pharmacy

as day trips to Darien and Reidsville.

Parks

Senior bowling continued to meet each Monday.  

Senior Center

Pooler Stadium held 2 high school football games in September.

The community center was rented each weekend in October.

The monthly TVIP class was held at the community center.

Healthy kids running program met each Sunday at the rec complex.

classes.

6u basketball registration ended. Practices and games began in late October.

Pooler Parks & Recreation

flag and tackle football. 

Monthly Report: October 2022

Recreation Department

Games continued for youth fall soccer, volleyball, and cheerleading, as well as both

Fall gymnastics and dance classes continued.  Tennis sessions continued for Sept/Oct

Fall baseball teams continued practicing at Pooler Park.













City of Pooler
Single Family Residential Permits

October 2022

Date Permit # Subdivision Address Contractor Owner PIN #

Flood 
Zone/Flood 

Way
10/26/2022 220283 Harmony 119 Meldoy Ddr., Lot 623 Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same 51010F05095
10/11/2022 221111 Telfair Park 1012 Easthaven Blvd., Lot 432 Mungo Homes Same 51009S01007
10/11/2022 221112 Telfair Park 1010 Easthaven Blvd., Lot 433 Mungo Homes Same 51009S01006
10/11/2022 221114 Telfair Park 1006 Easthaven Blvd., Lot 435 Mungo Homes Same 51009S01004
10/11/2022 221179 Westbrook Glen 171 Harvest Hill, Lot 820 Pulte Home Company Same 51009R02038
10/11/2022 221180 Westbrook Glen 158 Harvest Hill, Lot 822 Pulte Home Company Same 51009R01031
10/11/2022 221181 Westbrook Glen 148 Harvest Hill, Lot 827 Pulte Home Company Same 51009R01026
10/11/2022 221182 Westbrook Glen 144 Harvest Hill, Lot 829 Pulte Home Company Same 51009R01024
10/14/2022 221183 Westwood Reserve 75 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 90 DR Horton Same 5100G04014
10/14/2022 221184 Westwood Reserve 77 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 91 DR Horton Same 5100G04015
10/14/2022 221185 Westwood Reserve 79 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 92 DR Horton Same 5100G04016
10/14/2022 221186 Westwood Reserve 81 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 93 DR Horton Same 5100G04017
10/5/2022 221189 Harmony 116 Melody Dr., Lot 601 Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same 51010F05073
10/5/2022 221190 Harmony 122 Melody Dr., Lot 604 Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same 51010F05076
10/5/2022 221191 Harmony 124 Melody Dr., Lot 605 Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same 51010F05077
10/5/2022 221195 Harmony 129 Melody Dr., Lot 618 Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same 51010F06090
10/5/2022 221196 Harmony 117 Melody Dr., Lot 624 Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same 51010F09007
10/25/2022 221274 Westbrook  329 Westbrook Ln., Lot 48 Grant Homes Inc Marcus and Janell Burch 51009G02039
10/26/2022 221275 Forest Lakes 120 Como Dr., Lot 918 Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same 51014C09019 Yes/No
10/26/2022 221276 Harmony 118 Melody Dr., Lot 602 Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same 51010F05074
10/26/2022 221278 Harmony 120 Melody Dr., Lot 603 Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same 51010F05075
10/26/2022 221279 Harmony 133 Melody Dr., Lot 616 Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same 51010F05088
10/26/2022 221280 Harmony 127 Melody Dr., Lot 619 Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same 51010F05091
10/26/2022 221281 Harmony 125 Melody Dr., Lot 620 Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same 51010F05092
10/26/2022 221282 Harmony 121 Melody Dr., Lot 622 Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same 51010F05094
10/31/2022 221300 Hunt Club 303 Serengeti Blvd., Lot 602 Beazer Homes Same 51015C01006

 

Total 26



City of Pooler
Townhome Permits

October 2022

Date Permit # Subdivision Address Contractor Owner PIN #

Flood 
Zone/Flood 

Way

Total 0



City of Pooler
Commercial Permits

October 2022

Date Permit # Address Contractor Owner Type/Project PIN #

Flood 
Zone/Flood 

Way
10/31/2022 220937 102 Zoya Ln. Hat Creek Construction Inc. SSR Savannah LLC Zaxby's Restaurant 5101001089
10/11/2022 221044 50 Galloway Dr., Bldg. A Wimco Corp AC WDM SPP Owner LLC Self Storage Bldg/w office 5102301033
10/3/2022 221046 2005 Pooler Pkwy Ecker Construciton Sean O'Brien Take 5 Oil Change 5100901147

10/11/2022 221049 50 Galloway Dr., Bldg. B Wimco Corp AC WDM SPP Owner LLC Self Storage Building 5102301033
10/11/2022 221050 50 Galloway Dr., Bldg. C Wimco Corp AC WDM SPP Owner LLC Self Storage Building 5102301033
10/18/2022 221052 500 E. Hwy 80 Drury Construction Co. LLC. Druty Savannah, LLC Drury Hotel 5000707002A
10/10/2022 221124 1501 Pine Barren Rd. Ziglift Material Handling MSI Surfaces Storage Racks 5102301018
10/27/2022 221138 2120 Pooler Pkwy Venture Construction Co. 30 AIP Pooler, LLC Retail Shell 5100901086
10/4/2022 221144 810 Towne Center Blvd Ste. 102 Wilson Pickett Paul Patel CBD Store Buildout 50017C02054

10/11/2022 221160 907 E. Hwy 80 Infinite Technical Services Telsa Inc Tesla Charging Station 5002301007
10/5/2022 221173 405 W. Hwy 80 Ste. 106 Marsh Construction Kyle Hadden Staffing Agency Buildout 5000308008

10/17/2022 221229 111 Coleman Blvd. R Peacock Construction Denholtz Group Enclose Receiving Area 5098504054
10/17/2022 221244 501 Memorial Blvd. Greenspeed Energy Solutions JC Lewis Motor Company Electric Vehicle Chargers 5101001063
10/20/2022 221260 1557 Pooler Pkwy Ste 200 Parker Properties Russell Lee Open Two Tenant Spaces 5101001065

 

 

Total 14   



Misc. Permits October 2022

Date Permit # Address Contractor Owner Project Type PIN # Flood Zone
10/7/2022 220217 114 Canal St. Palmetto Solar Donna Kroll Electrical
10/7/2022 220972 1204 W. Hwy 80 Signs By James Jeff Hubbard Monument Sign

10/11/2022 221162 111 White Dogwood Ln. Pride Pools & Spas James Collins Inground Fiberglass Pool
10/7/2022 221167 128 Pipemakers Cir. Signs By James J Canal Properties LLC Wall Sign
10/7/2022 221168 810 Towne Center Blvd. Unit 102 Signs By James Paul Patel Wall Sign
10/3/2022 221174 100 Blue Moon Xing Unit 116 Champion Fire Protection Blue Moon Nutrition LLC Fire Sprinkler
10/6/2022 221197 3002 Benton Blvd. Bldg 200 Cornerstone Control Systems DD Benton LLC Fire Alarm
10/6/2022 221198 3002 Benton Blvd. Bldg 300 Cornerstone Control Systems DD Benton LLC Fire Alarm
10/6/2022 221199 3002 Benton Blvd. Bldg 400 Cornerstone Control Systems DD Benton LLC Fire Alarm
10/6/2022 221200 3002 Benton Blvd. Bldg 500 Cornerstone Control Systems DD Benton LLC Fire Alarm
10/6/2022 221201 3002 Benton Blvd. Bldg 600 Cornerstone Control Systems DD Benton LLC Fire Alarm
10/6/2022 221202 3002 Benton Blvd. Bldg 700 Cornerstone Control Systems DD Benton LLC Fire Alarm
10/6/2022 221203 3002 Benton Blvd. Bldg 1000 Cornerstone Control Systems DD Benton LLC Fire Alarm
10/6/2022 221204 3002 Benton Blvd. Bldg 1100 Cornerstone Control Systems DD Benton LLC Fire Alarm
10/6/2022 221205 3002 Benton Blvd. Bldg 1200 Cornerstone Control Systems DD Benton LLC Fire Alarm
10/6/2022 221206 3002 Benton Blvd. Bldg 1300 Cornerstone Control Systems DD Benton LLC Fire Alarm
10/6/2022 221207 3002 Benton Blvd. Bldg 1400 Cornerstone Control Systems DD Benton LLC Fire Alarm
10/6/2022 221208 3002 Benton Blvd. Pump House Cornerstone Control Systems DD Benton LLC Fire Alarm
10/6/2022 221213 6 Wyndy Ct. B&M Pooler Christopher Ingram Inground Vinyl Pool

10/11/2022 221214 119 River Run Dr. Palmetto Solar Damian Dunbar Electrical
10/7/2022 221215 122 River Run Dr. Palmetto Solar Jerry Mobley Electrical
10/7/2022 221216 273 Longleaf Cir. Palmetto Solar Dorothy Sanders Electrical
10/7/2022 221218 105 Melody Dr. Palmetto Solar Roderick Jefferson Jr Electrical
10/6/2022 221219 1017 East Hwy 80 Unit 8 Todd Eelctrical Systems Reed Blair Electrical
10/6/2022 221220 708 Pine Barren Rd. Mark and Linda Lucas Same Conver Garage to Master Suite 5101102006

10/11/2022 221221 1 Golf Dr. Omni Services of SC Inc Logan Homes Electrical
10/12/2022 221222 117 Baynard St. Lenworth Dixon Same Covered Porch 51009M01014
10/11/2022 221223 200 Tanger Outlets Bld. Unit 729 Sign D' Sign Tanger Outlets Wall Sign
10/11/2022 221224 2120 Pooler Pkwy Commercial Signs Inc Southeastern Retail Development LLC Wall Sign
10/11/2022 221226 112 Canal Cove Palmetto Solar Dennis Abernathy Electrical
10/11/2022 221228 2200 Pooler Pkwy J.A.M. Electric City of Pooler Electrical
10/12/2022 221230 428 2nd St. Malik Idris Same 6' Wood Privacy Fence
10/11/2022 221231 3002A Benton Grove Jeff Stewart Electrical Services Inc Comcast Electrical
10/11/2022 221232 100 Populus Dr. Bldg. 3000 Jeff Stewart Electrical Services Inc Comcast Electrical
10/12/2022 221233 430 2nd St. Malik Idris Same 6' Wood Privacy Fence
10/12/2022 221234 200 Tanger Outlets Bld. Unit 729 Sign D' Sign Tanger Outlets Wall Sign
10/13/2022 221241 500 E. Hwy 80 Drury Construction Company Same Temporary Construction Tailer
10/13/2022 221242 3002 Benton Blvd. Aquatics Pools & Spas DD Benton LLC Commercial Swimming Pool 5001701039
10/14/2022 221243 159 Harvest Hill JDH Decks and Fences Delaney Blackburn Black Aluminum Fence
10/18/2022 221245 60 Triple B Trail Recore Electrical Contractors Amazon Fire Alarm System
10/19/2022 221253 6 Mill Creek Cir. Unit B Sign D' Sign Rob Martin Multiple Signs
10/20/2022 221254 402 Sangrena Dr. Tuff Shed George Smith Storage Building 5001301012
10/20/2022 221261 1521 Pooler Pkwy Savannah Fence & Entry Systems Stephen Remler Black Vinyl Coated Fence
10/21/2022 221263 120 Foxfield Way Atlantic Coastal Signs 140 Commerce LLC Multiple Signs
10/21/2022 221265 50 Galloway Dr. WIMCO Same Temporary Construction Tailer
10/21/2022 221266 1501 Pine Barren Rd. Doug Bean Signs Horizon Investment Partners LLC Multiple Signs
10/21/2022 221267 502 James Rd. Freedom Forever Angelia Horton Electrical
10/21/2022 221269 1152 W. Hwy 80 Griffin Contracting Inc. Dasher Development LLC Demolition 5101301016
10/21/2022 221270 1132 W. Hwy 80 Griffin Contracting Inc. Dasher Development LLC Demolition 5101301018
10/21/2022 221271 1029 W. Hwy 80 Thompson Building Wrecking Co. Enmark Stations Inc. Demolition 5001602002
10/21/2022 221273 1055 E. Hwy 80 Boxdrop Lowcountry Furniture Wall Sign
10/25/2022 221284 200 Tanger Outlets Bld. Unit 629 ProLectric Electrical Jana Noble Electrical
10/26/2022 221288 91 Melody Dr. Freedom Forever Dejuan Freese Electrical
10/27/2022 221295 213 N Newton St. Daniel Hatcher Same Carport 5000603013
10/27/2022 221296 213 N Newton St. Daniel Hatcher Same 6' Privacy Fence 5000603013
10/31/2022 221301 1554 E. Hwy 80 Coastal Electric Partners Personell Electrical
10/31/2022 221304 1000 Pine Barren Rd., Unit 111 All Sign Remax Savannah Wall Sign

Total 57



City of Pooler
Mobile Home Permits

October 2022

Date Permit # Subdivision Address Mobile Home Installer Owner
10/21/2022 221272 Garden Acres MHP 1105 S. Rogers St., Lot 803 Craig Williams Chatham Classic Homes
10/26/2022 221287 Garden Acres MHP 1106 S. Rogers St., Lot 801 Craig Williams Chatham Classic Homes

Total 2



City of Pooler
Certificate of Occupancy

October 2022

Date Permit # Subdivision Address Type of Construction Contractor Owner
10/3/2022 220630 Tanger Outlets 240 Tanger Outlets Blvd., Unit 108/109 America's Best Buildout DooleyMack Constructors National Vistion
10/4/2022 220578 Westside Business Park 119 Westside Blvd. Warehouse Addition Mahany Construction Coggins Promotional
10/5/2022 210021 Hunt Club 329 Serengeti Blvd., Lot 654 Single Family Detached Beazer Homes Same
10/6/2022 211198 Westbrook 3 Tanner's Row, Lot 302 Single Family Detached Transcend Custom Homes John & Christina Towels
10/6/2022 220274 Ellis Park 107 Buttermere Way, Lot 336 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
10/10/2022 220088 Westwood Reserve 205 Merganser Dr., Lot 2 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
10/11/2022 220092 Westwood Reserve 211 Merganser Dr., Lot 5 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
10/12/2022 220988 Tanger Outlets 200 Tanger Outlets Bvd. Hugto Boss Buildout Retcom Construction Hugo Boss
10/12/2022 211225 204 Nordic Way Fire Station Pro-Construction of GA City of Pooler
10/13/2022 220018 Clubhouse Residential 20 Palladian Way, Lot 470 Townhome Logan Homes SC LLC Same
10/13/2022 211348 Westwood Reserve 11 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 21 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
10/13/2022 220384 Ellis Park 115 Buttermere Way, Lot 340 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
10/13/2022 220012 1 Godley Station Blvd. C-111 Clean Eatz Buildout Paderewski Construction Godley Station Partners LLC
10/14/2022 211270 Hunt Club Townhomes 142 Congo Ct., Lot 512 Townhome Beazer Homes Same
10/14/2022 211352 Westwood Reserve 12 Woodford Reserve Dr., Lot 26 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
10/17/2022 220213 Westwood Reserve 219 Merganser Dr., Lot 9 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
10/17/2022 220094 Westwood Reserve 215 Merganser Dr., Lot 7 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
10/18/2022 211114 1900 Pine Meadow Dr. Office Building Griffin Construction Co. Brent Bazemore
10/19/2022 220155 Westwood Reserve 218 Merganser Dr., Lot 11 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
10/19/2022 220140 Westwood Reserve 217 Merganser Dr., Lot 8 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
10/19/2022 211375 Westwood Reserve 15 Woodford Reserve, Lot 22 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
10/19/2022 220199 Westbrook Glen 124 Harvest Hill, Lot 850 Single Family Detached Pulte Home Company LLC Same
10/19/2022 220388 Westbrook Glen 159 Harvest Hill, Lot 814 Single Family Detached Pulte Home Company LLC Same
10/19/2022 220197 Westbrook Glen 137 Harvest Hill, Lot 803 Single Family Detached Pulte Home Company LLC Same
10/21/2022 211206 Westbrook 236 Westbrook Ln., Lot 206 Single Family Detached KC Brothers Construction Same
10/21/2022 220196 Westbrook Glen 135 Harvest Hill, Lot 802 Single Family Detached Pulte Home Company LLC Same
10/21/2022 220383 Ellis Park 113 Buttermere Wsay, Lot 339 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
10/24/2022 210169 Hunt Club 318 Serengeti Blvd., Lot 632 Single Family Detached Beazer Homes Same
10/24/2022 220573 Ellis Park 110 Kraft Kove, Lot 285 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
10/24/2022 220574 Ellis Park 108 Kraft Kove, Lot 286 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
10/24/2022 220192 Westbrook Glen 133 Harvest Hill, Lot 801 Single Family Detached Pulte Home Company LLC Same
10/25/2022 211271 Hunt Club Townhomes 140 Congo Ct., Lot 513 Townhome Beazer Homes Same
10/25/2022 211269 Hunt Club Townhomes 144 Congo Ct., Lto 511 Townhome Beazer Homes Same
10/25/2022 220067 Ellis Park 110 Coopers Rise, Lot 349 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
10/25/2022 220269 Ellis Park 128 Charles Ln., Lot 250 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
10/25/2022 220309 Westbrook Glen 143 Harvest Hill, Lot 806 Single Family Detached Pulte Home Company LLC Same
10/26/2022 211261 Hunt Club 312 Serengeti Blvd., Lot 635 Single Family Detached Beazer Homes Same
10/26/2022 220279 Ellis Park 105 Coopers Rise,Lot 353 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
10/26/2022 220470 Ellis Park 205 Kraft Kove, Lot 288 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
10/26/2022 220389 Westbrook Glen 161 Harvest Hill, Lot 815 Single Family Detached Pulte Home Company LLC Same
10/27/2022 220200 Westbrook Glen 122 Harvest Hill, Lot 851 Single Family Detached Pulte Home Company LLC Same
10/28/2022 220310 Westbrook Glen 149 Harvest Hill, Lot 809 Single Family Detached Pulte Home Company LLC Same
10/28/2022 220576 Ellis Park 108 Buttermere Way, Lot 327 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
10/27/2022 220013 Westbrook 125 Kent Trl., Lot 544 Single Family Detached SDG Construction Services Eric Scott
10/31/2022 220224 Westwood Reserve 319 Merganser Dr., Lot 37 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
10/31/2022 220198 Westbrook Glen 141 Harvest Hill, Lot 805 Single Family Detached Pulte Home Company LLC Same
10/31/2022 211279 Hunt Club 310 Serengeti Blvd., Lot 636 Single Family Detached Beazer Homes Same
10/31/2022 220221 Westwood Reserve 323 Merganser Dr., Lot 35 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
10/31/2022 220379 Westwood Reserve 311 Merganser Dr., Lot 41 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
10/31/2022 220223 Westwood Reserve 321 Merganser Dr., Lot 36 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same

Total 50



Monthly Report
October 2022

INSPECTORS
Scott MacPherson 232 Inspections (Included in Salary)
Frank Garza 541 Inspections (Included in Salary)

Total Inspections: 773 Inspections



ORDINANCE NO. O2022-11.A

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF POOLER CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER 90 – VEHICLES FOR 
HIRE, ARTICLE II – TOWING AND WREKCER SERVICE; TO REPEAL ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT 
HEREWITH; TO PROVIDE FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Pooler that the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Pooler, Georgia are hereby amended as follows:

I

That CHAPTER 90 – VEHICLES FOR HIRE, Article II. TOWING AND WRECKER SERVICE be amended by 
deleting the strikethrough text and adding the underlined text:

Sec. 90-61. List.

In order for any person, including service stations, auto service companies, towing services, 
wrecker services or other businesses to operate a towing or wrecker service within the city limits, the 
following conditions, standards, qualifications and requirements shall be complied with: 

(1) The chief of police shall prepare and maintain a list, in alphabetical order, for all garage or 
other business establishments referred to in this section, which desire to engage in a wrecker 
service or towing service within the city. The chief of police shall supply applications to 
applicants desiring to qualify to operate a wrecker or towing service within the city; 

(2) From such applications, the chief of police shall prepare and maintain a wrecker service list 
and all such persons whose name appears on the wrecker service list shall meet the 
qualifications as set out by the chief of police and as set out by the ordinances of the city; 

(3) No application, as provided for in subsection (2) of this section, shall be considered unless the 
applicant shall maintain a storage area, as provided for in section 90-65, and that the storing 
facility for towed vehicles shall be physically located within the city limits or 5-miles thereof; 

(4) If for any reason it shall become necessary for the police department to remove any vehicle, 
for any cause, from the public ways or other places in the city, the police department shall 
first call the company with whom the city has a contract for such towing or wrecker services. 
If such company does not or is unable to respond, the police department may call any of the 
other towing or wrecker service companies licensed and operating in the city. The mayor and 
aldermanic board shall make the selection of the company with whom the city will contract 
for wrecker and towing services under such terms and conditions as they may deem 
appropriate; 

(5) The owner or person in possession of a vehicle about to be removed shall have the right to 
designate a towing or wrecker service. It shall be the duty of the investigating officer to first 
determine, if possible, whether such person has a preference before reporting the need for a 
towing or wrecker service to be dispatched; 

(6) If it becomes necessary to tow a vehicle whose gross vehicle weight is in excess of 6,500 
pounds, or if there is not available a qualified operator on the available list to handle the tow, 
the chief of police or his designee shall have authority to call such other businesses, garages 
or establishments who have the proper equipment in order to handle the tow. 



Sec. 90-62. Definitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 

Towing or providing wrecker service means the answering of any call to remove any vehicle from a 
public right-of-way, or removal of a vehicle from property adjacent to a public right-of-way. 

Sec. 90-63. Equipment.

Any person providing towing or wrecker services shall have a wrecker which meets the minimum 
requirements of 8,500 pounds gross vehicule weight (g.v.w.) with a 5,000-pound hand or power wench, 
crane and boom. All towing or wrecker vehicles will be required to carry a full compliment of service 
items such as fire extinguishers, chains, dollies, proper emergency lighting or flares for on-scene work, 
equipment needed for lifting, extricating, righting of wrecked vehicles and removal from the 
thoroughfares by towing or carting.Any person providing towing or wrecker services shall have a 
wrecker that meets the minimum requirements of maintaining:

at least four (4) Class I wreckers. These wreckers shall be defined as a wrecker having at least 
10,000-pound minimum gross weight rating equipped with an 8,000-pound P.T.O. mechanically driven 
power winch. A Class I wrecker shall be capable of towing automobiles, light trucks, and similar-sized 
vehicles; and 

at least three (3) Class III wreckers. These wreckers are classified as heavy-duty trucks. These 
wreckers shall be defined as a wrecker having a minimum of 30,000-pound G.V.W. with a 30,000-pound 
winch and boom. At least one of the Class III wreckers shall have a rotating boom.  

 All towing or wrecker vehicles will be required to carry a full complement of service items, such as fire 
extinguishers, chains, dollies, proper emergency lighting or flares for on-scene work, equipment needed 
for lifting, extricating, righting of wrecked vehicles, and removal from the thoroughfares by towing or 
carting.

Sec. 90-64. - Clean up of street.

Each wrecker will carry a broom and the wrecker driver or his assistant shall be required to sweep 
up and remove broken glass or other debris when a vehicle is removed from the street. Removing all 
debris from the street is part of the wrecker company's obligation. When directed by the police to 
remove material which is part of a load being trucked off the thoroughfare, the wrecker company may 
remove or subcontract for the removal of material as directed and charge a reasonable rate for such 
removal. When two or more companies are assigned to a call, then it shall be the equal responsibility of 
all for the cleaning of the wreck site.

Sec. 90-65. Storage area.

(a) Any person engaging in a towing or wrecker service shall have an area for the storage of towed 
vehicles. The parking (storage) area shall be for not less than ten vehicles. 

(b) The parking (storage) area shall be located within a zoning area which permits such activity.  When 
located inside the City of Pooler, a towing or wrecker service shall meet all required development 
standards.  When located outside of Pooler limits, it must conform to the local jurisdiction’s 
requirements for said area. In addition to any requirements contained in the zoning ordinance, the 
site plan for the parking (storage) area shall be approved by the planning and zoning commission 
and the aldermanic board. The site plan shall contain such buffers, including fencing and screening, 



as is appropriate, based upon the size, location and character of the property being utilized as the 
parking (storage) area and the adjacent properties within the nearby area, to shield the vehicles 
being stored from the view of the adjacent property and/or streets. 

Sec. 90-66. Maintenance of wreckers; regulation by police department.

The person providing a towing or wrecker service will maintain such wreckers as are required by 
the police department of the city and shall abide by all regulations set forth by the Federal Motor 
Vehicle Standards, or otherwise specified within this Article,that may be instituted by the police 
department  to maintain a high level of service to the public.

Sec. 90-67. Charges.

Charges for towing or wrecker service will not be greater than those contained in section 90-68. Such 
rates will be posted in the place of business in such a manner as to be prominently displayed for 
attention and information of the claimant's vehicle which has been towed. The police department of the 
city will not be responsible for any charges placed against towed vehicles. All charges will be paid by the 
vehicle's owner or by sums derived from the legal sale of such towed vehicle to cover costs.

Sec. 90-68. Schedule of fees.

The fee or rate of charge for providing towing or wrecker service shall be provided as follows: 

(1) The normal fee or basic towing charge shall not be in excess of an amount as set forth in the 
schedule of fees and charges. Such "normal towing" shall be defined as responding to a call for 
the tow of any vehicle that is accomplished by the attaching of such vehicle to the equipment on 
the wrecker, and does not require the use of carts, dollies or other auxiliary equipment; 

(2) A fee as set forth in the schedule of fees and charges for basic towing wrecker fee may be 
charged for responding to a call for a tow on a vehicle that is accomplished by the attaching to 
such vehicle the equipment on the wrecker, and which requires the use of dollies, carts or other 
auxiliary equipment to ensure removal of the vehicle; 

(3) When a vehicle is being towed for a distance of more than ten miles, the towing or wrecker 
charge will not exceed an amount set forth in the schedule of fees and charges per additional 
mile. All entities providing towing or wrecker services within the city shall maintain liability 
insurance in the form of a comprehensive, general automobile liability policy. Such policy will 
protect the wrecker service from claims for bodily injury, including the death of its employees 
and all others, and for claims of property damage, and/or all claims which may arise out of or as 
a result of services performed at the request of the police department of the city. Owners of 
towing or wrecker services shall indemnify the city for all claims and damages arising from the 
services performed by such wrecker. The minimum liability insurance shall be as follows: 

Per Person Per Accident 

a. Bodily injury, $100,000.00 $300,000.00 

b. Property damage  100,000.00 

(4) All persons engaged in towing or wrecker services within the city shall provide to the chief of 
police a copy of his insurance certificate showing the amount and expiration date of such policy.



Sec. 90-69. Failure to respond to call; consequences.

Failure to respond to a call by a towing or wrecker service to pick up a disabled or parked vehicle 
when requested to do so by the police department of the city, may result in the loss of such towing or 
wrecker service's right to operate such service within the city subject to the procedure in section 90-74. 

Sec. 90-70. Emergency amber light.

Each wrecker must be equipped with an emergency amber light which will be used en route to the 
scene of the emergency whenever necessary. 

Sec. 90-71. Monitoring police radio frequency.

Any person operating a towing or wrecker service within the city will not monitor any one of the 
police department radio channels (frequencies) for the purpose of monetary gain (USC tit. 47, § 605, 
Secrecy of Communications). 

Sec. 90-72. Notification of police dispatcher.

No person operating a towing or wrecker service within the city will answer any call unless he first 
notifies the dispatcher of the police department of the city as to the nature of the request or location of 
the vehicle. 

Sec. 90-73. Lien for amount of service rendered.

Any person meeting the provisions of this article that has provided towing or wrecker services, or 
storage of a vehicle, shall have a lien for the number of services rendered, and such vehicle may be sold 
to satisfy such lien in accordance with the provisions of state law. 

Sec. 90-74. Violation; loss of privilege to serve.

Any person providing towing or wrecker services within the city that violates any provision of this 
article shall be subject to the loss of his right to provide towing or wrecker services within the city. 

If a tow or wrecker service is found to be in violation of the City of Pooler Wrecker Contract or the 
provisions of this Article, the following procedure shall occur:

(1) A written notice will be sent via certified mail to the owner and/or operator of the towing or 
wrecker service stating:

a. The violation that occurred;

b. When the violation occurred;

c. Consequences of violating the contract or ordinance;

d. A copy of the current ordinance and/or copy of the contract; and,

e. A date no sooner than 30 days of the sending of the certified letter to appear before 
the Mayor and City Council at a violation hearing.

(2) No sooner than 30 days and no longer than 45 days of the sending of the certified letter, the 
Mayor and City Council shall hold a hearing for the applicant related to the violations.  The 
violation hearing shall serve to provide an opportunity for the owner/operator to:

a. Explain the reason(s) for violating the contract or ordinance;



b. Present a plan of action to prevent further violation for occurring; and,

c. Be put on notice regarding future violations could result in removal from the City of 
Pooler Wrecker Rotation.

II

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed.

III

If any section, clause, sentence, or phrase of this ordinance is held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any 
court of competent jurisdiction, the said holding shall be in no way affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this ordinance.

IV

This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon is adoption by the Mayor and City Council of Pooler, 
Georgia.

1st Reading: ______________________________

2nd Reading: ______________________________

This _____ day of _______________, 2022.

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA

___________________________

Rebecca C. Benton, Mayor

Attest:

___________________________

Kiley Fusco, City Clerk

Date: _______________



ORDINANCE NO. O2022-11.B

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF POOLER CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER 42 – ENVIRONMENT, 
ARTICLE VI – TREE PROTECTION TO ADD DIVISIONS AND ESTABLISH REQUIREMENTS FOR TREE 
PROTECTION ON PUBLIC PROPERTY AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY; TO REPEAL ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT 
HEREWITH; TO PROVIDE FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Pooler that the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Pooler, Georgia are hereby amended as follows:

I

That Chapter 42, Article VI. TREE PROTECTION be amended to establish Divisions within the Chapter.  
Division 1 shall be created within the Article.  Division 1 shall be known as “TREE PROTECTION FOR LAND 
DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES”.  Division 1 shall contain sections 42-196 through 42-207.  Division 2 shall be 
created within the Article.  Division 2 shall be known as “TREE PROTECTION FOR PUBLIC PROPERTY AND 
RIGHTS-OF-WAY”.

II

That Chapter 42, Article VI. TREE PROTECTION be amended to add the following sections under Division 2 
– TREE PROCTECTION FOR PUBLIC PROPERTY AND RIGHTS OF WAYS, which reads as follows:

Sec. 42-208. – Purpose and intent.

The City of Pooler deems it necessary and desirable in the interest of enhancing quality of life and 
the present and future public health, safety, and welfare of all residents to enact an ordinance for the 
preservation, planting, and care of trees on public property and rights-of-way.  This Division and sections 
found herewith establishes the authority and responsibility for managing public trees and establishes 
practices governing the planting and care of trees on public property.

Sec. 42-209. – Definitions.

The following words and phrases shall have the following meanings:

Damage. Any injury to or destruction of a tree, including but not limited to: uprooting; severance 
of all or part of the root system or main trunk; storage of material on or compaction of surrounding soil; 
a substantial change in the natural grade above a root system or around a trunk; surrounding the tree 
with impervious paving materials; or any trauma caused by accident or collision.

Nuisance. Any tree, or limb thereof, that has an infectious disease or insect; is dead or dying; 
obstructs the view of traffic signs or the free passage of pedestrians or vehicles; or threatens public health, 
safety, and welfare.

Parkway.  The area along a public street between the curb and sidewalk; or if there is not sidewalk, 
the unpaved portion of the area between the street right-of-way (ROW) line and the paved portion of the 
street or alley.

Public Property.  All grounds and rights-of-way (ROW) owned or maintained by the City of Pooler.



Public Tree.  Any tree or woody vegetation on city-owned or city-maintained property or rights-
of-way (ROW).

Top or Topping.  The non-standard practice of cutting back of limbs to stubs within a tree’s crown 
to such a degree so as to remove the normal canopy and disfigure the tree.

The definitions as provided in Division 1 of Article VI shall be included by reference.  In the event of a 
conflict between definitions of this Division and Division 1, the definition of this Division shall apply.

Sec. 42-210. – Authority and power.

(a) The City Manager, including his/her designee, shall have the full authority and responsibility to 
plant, prune, maintain, and remove trees and woody plants growing in and upon all municipal 
streets, rights-of-ways, city parks, and other public property.  This shall include the removal of 
trees that may threaten electrical, telephone, gas, or any municipal utility line, or any tree that is 
affected by fungus, insect, or other pest disease.

(b) All City departments will coordinate as necessary with the City Manager, or designee, and will 
provide services as required to ensure compliance with this Ordinance as it relates to streets, 
alleys, rights-of-way, drainage, easements, and other public properties.

(c) No person shall hinder, prevent, delay, or interfere with the City Manager, or designee, or agents 
while engaged in carrying out the execution or enforcement of this Division.

Sec. 42-211. – Tree planting care and standards.

(a) All planting and maintenance of public trees shall conform to the American National Standards 
Institute (ANSI) A-300 “Standards for Tree Care Operations” and shall follow all tree care Best 
Management Practices (BMPs) publishes by the International Society of Arboriculture.

(b) The maintenance of public trees for utility clearance shall conform to all applicable utility industry 
standards and best practices related to clearing and pruning.

(c) The City shall maintain an official list of desirable tree species for planting on public property in 
two size classes, Ornamental – trees of 20 feet or less in height at maturity and Shade – trees 
greater than 20 feet in height at maturity.  Trees from the approved list may be planted without 
special permission; other species may be planted with written approval from the City Manager, 
or designee.

(d) The City shall develop and maintain an official set of spacing requirements for the planting of trees 
on public property, including:  

(1) No tree may be planted within the visibility triangle of a street intersection or curb-
cut/drive-way;

(2) No tree may be planted within 10 feet of a fire hydrant;

(3) No tree may be planted within 10 feet of any water or sewer line; and,

(4) Only Ornamental trees on the official tree species list may be planted under or within 15 
lateral feet of any overhead utility.



Sec. 42-212. – Prohibition again harming public trees.

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person, firm, or corporation to damage, remove, or cause the damage 
or removal of a tree on public property without written consent from the City.

(b) It shall be unlawful for any person, firm, or corporation to attach any cable, wire, sign, or any 
other object to any street, park, or public tree.

(c) It shall be unlawful for any person, firm, or corporation to “top” any public tree.  Trees severely 
damaged by storms or other causes, where best pruning practices are impractical may be 
exempted from this provision at the determination of the City.

(d) Any person, firm, corporation, or City department, contractor, or anyone otherwise affiliated with 
the City performing construction near any public tree(s) shall consult with the City Manager, or 
designee, and shall employ appropriate measures to protect the tree(s), according to procedures 
contained in the Best Management Practices (BMPs) for “Managing Trees During Construction” 
published by the International Society of Arboriculture.

(e) Each violation of this section shall constitute a separate violation, punishable by fines and 
penalties under Sec. 42-215, and shall include to the mitigation value for the tree(s) removed or 
damaged in violation of this section.

Sec. 42-213. – Adjacent owner responsibility.

(a) The owner of land adjacent to any city street or highway, when acting within the provisions of this 
Ordinance, may plant and maintain trees in the adjacent parkway area.

(b) No property owner shall allow a tree, or other plant, growing on his or her property to obstruct 
or interfere with pedestrians or the view of drivers, thereby creating a hazard.  If an obstruction 
persists, the City shall notify the property owner to prune or remove the tree or plant.  If the 
owner fails to comply with the notice, the City may undertake the necessary work and charge the 
cost to the property owner.

Sec. 42-214. – Certain trees declared nuisance.

(a) Any tree, or limb thereof, on private property determined by the City to meet the definition of 
nuisance per this Division shall be declared such, and the City may require its treatment or 
removal.

(b) Upon determination of a nuisance tree, written notice shall be provided to the owner of the 
nuisance tree and the steps needed for remediation.  The written notice shall provide for a 
timeframe of corrective action in consultation.  Corrective action may be adjusted upon meeting 
with the City regarding the nuisance tree.

(c) Private property owners have the duty, at their own expense, to remove and treat nuisance trees 
on their property.  The City may remove such trees at the owner’s expense if the owner does not 
comply with treatment and/or removal as specified by the City within the written notification 
period, or as agreed upon with the City.

Sec. 42-215. – Violations and penalty.



A violation of the provisions of this article shall constitute an ordinance offense, punishable upon 
warrant directed to the City Municipal Court, and upon conviction,  shall be punished as provided in Sec. 
1-12, in and addition thereto, the violator may be enjoined from continuing the violation.  Any 
unauthorized removal of a public tree shall be considered a separate and distinct violation of this article.

Any person who damages a tree on city property shall be required to pay the City:

(1) The difference in value of the tree before and after the pruning, removal, or other 
damages; 

(2) All costs of tree evaluation and corrective tree maintenance or removal, if required, as 
the result of unauthorized pruning, removal, or other damage;

(3) All costs of stump removal and tree replacement, if tree removal is required; and,

(4) All other costs and expenses involved in the case.

Each day such violation continues shall be considered a separate offense.  Nothing contained in 
this section shall prevent the City from taking such other lawful action as is necessary to prevent 
or remedy a violation.

Sec. 42-216. – Appeals.

Appeals to administrative decisions related to the execution and enforcement of this ordinance may be 
appealed to the Mayor and City Council per the provisions of Appendix A, Article V, Section 14.

III

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed.

IV

If any section, clause, sentence, or phrase of this ordinance is held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any 
court of competent jurisdiction, the said holding shall be in no way affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this ordinance.

V

This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its adoption by the Mayor and City Council of Pooler, 
Georgia.

1st Reading: ______________________________

2nd Reading: ______________________________

This _____ day of _______________, 2022.

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA

___________________________



Rebecca C. Benton, Mayor

Attest:

___________________________

Kiley Fusco, City Clerk

Date: _______________



ORDINANCE NO. O2022-11.C

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF POOLER CODE OF ORDINANCES APPENDIX A – ZONING, TABLE 
4.1 – ALLOWED USES BY ZONING DISTRICT; TO REPEAL ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; TO 
PROVIDE FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Pooler that the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Pooler, Georgia are hereby amended as follows:

I

That Appendix A, Article IV. ZONING DISTRICTS, Table 4.1 Allowed Uses by Zoning District be amended to 
include Furniture and Related Product Manufacturing as a permitted use with conditional use approval 
use in the C-2 district:

 

II

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed.

III

If any section, clause, sentence, or phrase of this ordinance is held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any 
court of competent jurisdiction, the said holding shall be in no way affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this ordinance.

IV

This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its adoption by the Mayor and City Council of Pooler, 
Georgia.

1st Reading: ______________________________

2nd Reading: ______________________________

This _____ day of _______________, 2022.

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA



___________________________

Rebecca C. Benton, Mayor

Attest:

___________________________

Kiley Fusco, City Clerk

Date: _______________






















































































































































































































































	I. ROLL CALL/DECLARATION OF QUORUM
	II. CALL TO ORDER
	III. INVOCATION
	IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	V. ANNOUNCEMENTS
	VI. CONSENT AGENDA
	A. City Council Meeting Minutes of November 7, 2022
	6A_City Council Meeting_2022-11-07_Minutes_draft

	B. Alcoholic Beverage License Application for Savanna
	6B_Alcoholic Beverage License Application for Savannah Distributing Co, Inc. at 58 Columbia Drive_Redacted

	C. Alcoholic Beverage License Application fro Viet Hu
	6C_Alcoholic Beverage License Application fro Viet Huong, Inc. dba Viet Huong Oriental Market at 210 Grand Cen

	D. Temporary / Special Event (Dispensing Alcohol) Per
	6D_Temporary  Special Event (Dispensing Alcohol) Permit Application for Roselyn M. Moultrie _Redacted

	E. Department Reports
	1. Public Works
	6E.1_Public Works

	2. Finance
	6E.2_Finance

	3. Fire
	6E.3_Fire

	4. Police
	6E.4_Police

	5. Recreation
	6E.5_Recreation

	6. Planning & Zoning
	6E.6_P&Z



	VII. ORDINANCES, PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS
	A. Ordinance O2022-11.A - To Amend Chapter 90 - Vehic
	7A_Ordinance O2022-11.A - To Amend Chapter 90 - Vehicles for Hire, Article II - Towing and Wrec

	B. Ordinance O2022-11.B - To Amend Chapter 42 - Envir
	7B_Ordinance O2022-11.B - To Amend Chapter 42 - Environment, Article VI - Tree Protection to Add Divisions an

	C. Ordinance O2022-11.C - Zoning Text Amendment Addin
	7C_Ordinance O2022-11.C_Zoning Text Amendment Adding Furniture and Related Product Manufacturing


	VIII. NEW BUSINESS
	A. Zoning Buffer Requirement Variance for 1393 US Hig
	8A_Zoning Buffer Requirement Variance for 1393 US Highway 80 East

	B. Variance Request for Proposed Sewer Line Encroachm
	8B_Variance Request for Allowance of a Proposed Sewer Line Encroachment Within a City Owned Right-of-Way

	C. Zoning Map Amendment of Approximately 18.18 Acres 
	8C_Zoning Map Amendment of Approximately 18.18 Acres at Morgan Lakes Industrial Boulevard from PUD to I-1 

	D. Zoning Map Amendment of Approximately 4.92 Acres a
	8D_Zoning Map Amendment of Approximately 4.92 Acres at Benton Grove from R1-A to C-2

	E. Conditional Use Request to Construct an Auto Body 
	8E_Conditional Use Request to Construct an Auto Body Collision Repair Shop at 1224 US Highway 80 East

	F. Conditional Use Request to Construct a Funeral Hom
	8F_Conditional Use Request to Construct a Funeral Home at 1019 US Highway 80 West

	G. Minor Subdivision Plat for Outparcel 5, Mosaic Tow
	8G_Minor Subdivision Plat for Outparcel 5, Mosaic Towne Center

	H. Site Plan for 1543 Dean Forest Road
	8H_Site Plan for 1543 Dean Forest Road

	I. Site Plan for Durham Park Office at Durham Park Bo
	8I_Site Plan for Durham Park Office at Durham Park Boulevard

	J. Site Plan for 125 Distribution Drive
	8J_Site Plan for 125 Distribution Drive

	K. Site Plan for Parlor Mini Storage on Pine Barren R
	8K_Site Plan for Parlor Mini Storage on Pine Barren Road


	IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION
	X. ADJOURNMENT



